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I. KEY VERSITY XNF''OI{MATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Ilackgrou inf,ormation

Masindc Mul
Universities

[Jniversity of Science and -l'cchnology is a separate l.egal [Jniversity rlnder "
of 2012 (No 42 of 2012)." Thc Chairman of council is responsible lor the general

policy and stra direotion o{' the [Jnivcrsity

(b) Principal

The principal
se rviccs.

vities

vities of the [Jniversity are teaching, research, innovations, and cxlension

ITY
bers accept responsibility for the annual financial staternents, which have been
propriate accounting policics supported by reasonable and prudent.judgments
conformity with Intcrnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the
lic Sector Accounting Standards (IPPF), the International Professional Practice

RESPO
The Council
prepared using
and estimates, i

International

and who had di

Irramework (l and the requirements of thc State Corporations Act

'l'he Council bcrs are of the opinion that the financial Statements give a truc and fair view of
the state of thc nivcrsity's financial affairs and of its income and expcnditurc statement.

Nothing has to the attention of the Council to indicate that the lJnivcrsity will not remain a

gorng concern r at least lwelve months from the date of this statement

AUTIIO
1-he 2014/15 ounts were presented to Council and approved on 25th September, 2014

Key Managem

Masinde Muli
following key

University of Science and 'fechnology's day-to-day management is under the

iversity Senate
iversity Nlanagement Board and

Dean's Commillee

(c) Fiduciary nagement
'l'he key man ent personnel who hcld office during the financial year ended 30th June 2015

fiduciary responsibility were:

Arch. T,ebedee Maornbo Bukania(OG
Mrs. Getude Muthoni Namu
Mrs. So Kirorei

4L
):,

No. Designation Name
1 Council Chairrnan Dr. David Nyamwaya
2. Vice Chancellor Prof. Irrcdrick A.O.Otieno

Dr. Sornane M.lsmail3 Council Mernber
4

5

6.

Council Member
Council Membcr
Council Member

l Council Mernber

2 | :'ir :: ,:

Mr. Don R.O. Riaroh

,!'{L



(d) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

Here, provide a high-level description of the key fiduciary oversight arrangements
covering (say):

Audit and finance committee activities
Parliamentary committee activities
Development partner oversight activities
Other oversight activities

(e) University ltreadquarters

Masinde Muliro University of Science and Technology
Kakamega-Webuye Road,
P.O Box i 90-
Kakamega. 50100,
KENYA

(f) University Contacts

Telephone: (256) 30836
E-mail: infor@mmust.ac.ke and vc@mmust.ac.ke
Website: www.mm ust.ac.ke

(g) University Bankers

Kenya CommercialBank Ltd. (Main)
Co-operative Bank Of Kenya Ltd.
Barclays Bank of Kenya Ltd.
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd.
National Bank of Kenya Ltd.
Equify Bank Ltd.
Family Bank Ltd.

(h) Independent Auditors
Auditor Genera.l
Kenya Natiorral Audit Office
Anniversary Towers. University Way
P.O. Box 30084
GoP 00100
Nairobi, Ken5,2

(i) Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney Ceneral
State Law Office
Haratnbee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200

\airobi, Kenya

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.
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II. 'rrtrE oFFl OF"['FNE, UNNVERSITV

': '' ttt:r.."

FI.E [Ion. Mwai Kibaki,
B.A(Makercre).
BSc. Econ (l,ondon),
IIon DSC (MMUST),
c.G.l{.

Dr. David Nyarnwaya ,

I'}h.D-Medical Anthropology- Cambridgc [Jniversity, UK- 1 982

MPhil- Social Anthropology- Carnbridge University, UK-1979
Bachelor degree in Education-UON Kenya-1978

Prof Fredrick. A.O 0tieno,
ITAAS, PhI), F-SAICE, MBA

Dr. Somane M. Ismail,
MBA(Strategic Management)-Moi University -
Bachelor of Pharmacy- University of Hacettepe, Ankara,
Turkcy-

Arch. Zcbcdee Maombo Bukania(OGW),
Master of Architcoture- Univcrsity of Nairobi
Bachclor of Architccturc- lJniversity of Nairobi

/,L,

o't"

Chancellor

Chairman

Member

Membcr

Mcmbcr

Member

Mrs. Getudc Muthoni Namu,
MEd- I-ibrary and lnformation Science - Kenyatta University,
Bcd- Kenyatta University

41, r.;:,.



o
Member

Member

Member

Member

Ifi" MANAGTiNII.,NT T}j,AM

I\4lns. Sophy Kinorei,
MA -Management organization and Development- USIU -
Nairobi,
BEd - tioN

Mn. Don.R.O. trtiarola,
BSc. Universit of Nairobi,
B. A (UoN),
MBA (Egerton)
Iv{sc. Univcrrsity oi l,eicester (UK)

Ms Dorothy Kirneu
National Treasury Representative

Mr. David Watene,
Representative, Ministry of Higher Education, Science and
Technology

I(e5, profession/acad ernit:
t \^-:-- ^ r: ^ *u!stHrrart(rtrualifications

ilsc, MSu, PhD.
FAAS. FSAIC:E, N4BN

Vice Chanccllor

Name

Prof. Fredrick A.O Otier-ro

B.Sc. (iJofi),
M.Sr,. (Sourhampton),
l'ii. D. iSiranghai)

Dcputy Vice Clial rcci ior

lAdministrarion &
i-'rnancel

{/
.'li,ail

, rJ t\,1,
ii*'

.l
Prof. .l K. I{otich



B.lJd. (l.JoN),
M.A, Ph.D. (Moi Univcrsity),
II4KNAS

Deputy Vice Chanccilor
(Academic & Studcnt's
Affairs)

Prof. J

Prof.

K.W N

B.Ild., M.A.,(Kenyatta),
Ph.D. (UNISA)

IlSc (Moi),
MBA(UoN),
CPA (K) (Strathmore )

Deputy Vice Chanccllor
(Planning, Extension &
Research)

Ag. Financc Officer

Egara K

Mr. Bruno. N Ogama

Ag. Registrar -

Adrninistrationkala

BEd. Physical Ild (UoN),
Msc Mc Gill Univ Canada,
Phd. Progrmme Planning
Kenyatta Univ

B.A (UoN), Dip. HRM
Registrar- Planning,
Research & Extension

Dr. Peter Bul

Mr. Onyango Odhiambo

Ag. Registrar-Acadcm tc

Affairs
(. Onyancha

BSc Geology (UoN).
MSc Eng. Geology, (UoN) ,

Phd Eng Geology. (UoN)
Dr. Caroline
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]i\I. CTNAIR.M,AN'S SII.ATEMENT

It is with profound pleasure that i iake this opportunity to pleserrt the Final Accoi;nts for the Masinde

Muliro [Jniversity of Science and Technology (MMUST), the Universiiy of Choice.

l)uring the financial year ur-rder review, the University Council undertook to infi"rse fiscal discipline in
the management of both financtal anci non financial resources at the disposal of the University.
.l'owards this end, the lJniversity Council through the University Management institttted a rafl of
austerity measures to cu1 down on wastage and improve on efficiency in the utilization of resources.

This effort worked out well as is reflected in the resuits for the 701412015 financial year which I will
present shorlly.

The key achievement during the period was the completion of tliree(3) capital development projects

thathave changed tlie landscape of the University. These are the 1,000 bed capacit1,lr.,omen's hostel

that will irnmen-"ely inc'.rease the nurrher ol ferrrale students wiio will get on campus accommodation,

the 3,000 sitting capacity multipurpose hall that will increasc the capacity of the University to host

major events on campus. This rvil! also be used tbr large classes, workshops and seminars. The third
project is the 18 No. low cost lecture rooms constructed with the new interlocking soil block

iechnology that cut the construction cost by one third.'fhis saved the University over Kshs 30 million
in construction cost. J'he new lccture block is a rnajor milestone as it will increase the teaching space

on campus anci cut down on leasing of lecture rooms in Kakamcga tolvn. Apart fiom increasing the

overall capacity at the University, these three neu,buildings rvill have a major impact on the cash flow
of the University.

During the year under review the Universily took ovcr a section of the Kaimosi 'fcachers Training
College. The lnstitution was gazetted to be a constitucnt college of N4asinde Ir4uliro University of
Science and Technology. The first batch of Covernment sponsored students was admitted in

September of 2014. However ciuring the year under review therc was a markcci declinc in the

enrolment of selisponsored students. This was attributed to the rise in the number of Universities and

University Coiieges nationally that compete for the Same students.

Funding for Capital development fi'om the exchequer realized a nrajor decline. l'he Univelsity only
received Kshs 97M u,hicli rcprescnt 409/o of the amount that had been allocatcd in the printed

estimares. I'his greatly hampered the level of capital development work that had bcen planned during

the2014/2015 FY. 'l'he University utrlized IGhs 1J7M from internal sources to bridgc this gap.

Dr:ring the year under review the University was able to realise a re current revenue of
Kshs.2,409,771,604 madc rrp of Kshs 1,330,021,256 fi'orr GOI( recurrent granl, Kshs. 97,200,000

from GOK r.;rrpitrrl deveiopment grant and Kshs- 982,998,989 frotn approl-rriation in aid (A in A). l'he
resulrant surplus of Kshs 2A2,931p28 fiom opeiatlons vr'as useri up to fund ongoing capital

development projects to the tune of Kshs. 137.777.975 and pav deferred tax to the tune of Kshs.

6s.15M,

Thc lJniversity Council rvishes to thank all stake holders who contrihuted in one way or another to

makc the year a success that it was.'l'hese includc tlie teaching and non teaching stail, the suppliers-

students' thc community surrounding the [-lniversity and most importantly thc (iovernment [irr the

c'.cntinucd fr"rnciing of the I Iniversity

now present the final accounis of thc ljnii,ersity tbr thc pe:'rod 2()1412$1-5
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1,1

v. ItE,x'()IlT'O

I have thr pleasrl
2015

fhe Result
The [Jniversity
big ilnprovcment
financial control

staff. Thcse i

insufficient al

The University
137.7M to fin

'l'hc tJniversity
constituent collc
KATTI.JCO. It
201412015 FY th
constituent coll

Conclusion
I would like to
have givcn

F.A.O Oticno.
VICE CIdAN

to clear pafl of t deferred PAYIr tax and finance ongoing capital development projects. During
thc period under the Univcrsity implemented the scheme of scrvice for the non academic

the cost of personal emoluments.Previous deficits were attributed to

tion of capitation from the exchequer. With improved capitation this financial
year, wc hope
implement austc

turn the trend towards surpluses in futurc as the University continues to

ty mcasures to cut done on wastage and improve efficiency in operations

THE CI{[F][.' EXF]CUTXVE OF'F'[CE[T

tc prcscnl thc l3th Annual Ilepcr'1 and Accottnts for the ycar cnded 3Oth .lune

od a surplus of Kshs 202,931,828 for the period under review. J'his was a

fi'om a surplus of Kshs 1,368,171 reported in the previous year due to stringent

especially on thc operations and maintenancc activities. 1'his surplus was used

lized the surplus 1o pay tax arrears to thc tune of Kshs. 65.15M and Kshs.

three ongoing capital projects that have sincc been completed.

clvcr part of the l(aimosiTeachers Training Collcgc (KAITUCO) to become a

clf the lJniversity.'l'he University spent Kshs 18M as starl up funds for
an irritial number of 200 government sponsored students. By close of the

constituent college had been gazettc but is yet to get a lJniversity council. The

is thus being supported by the main campus.

is was capitalized and transferred l'rom work in progress (WIP) to buildings at a

488,718,477.00. 'l'his effectively brings thc value of buildings to Kshs

Ilowever the capital grant allocation has always been too low to complete any

nclude by congratulating all staffand students for the hannony and supporl they

Capital Projects
'l'he [Jniversity s rnade commendable strides in thc area of capital dcvclopment from as little as

Kshs I10,438
under rcview.
womcn hostel

in ne1 value of its fixed assets in 2004 to Kshs 2,13,496,,125 in the year

ing the year under review the University completed the 1,000 bed capacity

value of Kshs

single planncd
more tcaching

ect. The University requires workshops {br the Engineering, tuition blocks,

accommodation space for the rising number of students

Staffing
'fhe University in dire need ol teaching staff due to the increascd number of [Jnivcrsities and

constituent col across the country that has pouched a big number of its teaching staff. The

Univcrsity thus rcquirc to aggressively recruit replaccments

D

t throughout the period undcr rcview. 
.
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\TN. MANAG[tMENT }TEPR.ESEh*I'AT'NON

I-his representation is provided in conncction with the audit of the financial staternents of
Masinde Muliro University of Science and Technology for the 1,s6t- ended Z0l4lZ015 for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether or not the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Masinde Muliro tJniversity of Science and Technology
as at 3Oth June 2015 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Section 29 of the Exchequer and Audit Act, Cap 412.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the accuracy of the accounting rccords and the fair
presentation of the financial statements and we confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief.
the following representations given to you in connection with your duties as auditors of Masinde
Muliro university of Science and Technc.logy for the year ended z0l4l2ol5.

1. Accounting policies

The accounting policies usecj by Masinde Muliro University of Science and T'echnology are as
stated in the financial statements and are consistent with those of prcvious years.

2. Accounting records and transactions

2.1 We have inade available to you all books of accounts and supporting documentation and all
minutes of mcetings and rro sucli iirfoi-ntatioil iras been witfrheid.

2.2 "l'he financial statements are free of material misstatements including omissions. There are no
material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the ac:counting records underlying
the financiai statentents.

2.3 We'have no plans that may alter materially the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

2.4 Excepl as disclosed in the financial statements, the resuits of operations for the year were noi
materiaiiy affected by transactions of an extraordinary or abnormal nature or of a sorl not usually
undertaken by Masinde Muliro University of Science and l'echnology or items relating to a prior
year.

2.5 All transfer payments have been properly and cornpletely accounled lor and havc been
recordod in the proper period.

2.6 Personnelcxpenditure represents paymcnrs in respect of serviccs which have been rendered
tt-r Masinde Muliro University of Science and Teohnology by 1,060 cmployccs on thc payroll of
the year 2tr14115.

3. Assets

3.1 W'e have- no plans,:r intentions tha'. u,ill result in any exces-c or obsoietc in',,entor1,.

3.2 llasirrile Muliro IJnivcrsi[v uIscience an<i Techrrology has sa'ii5f2g{i-rry title to all assc'rs, and
there are no iiens or encumbrances on Masinde iluliro University of Scicnce and 'l'echnology'-.
assets in favour of third parties,
3.3 All assets wcre maintained and were store,j in good condition dLrring the financial year.

3.4 'l'lre uultuut:assEls irr i.hs fitrarrcial ..riialcrtrcrr[s arc cxpeclerl,:in orrr opinir.rn. Io prodttcc til lcrast
thc amouttts at wliich ihey ale staicd. Adequaie provision, in r-iur opinion. iias berrn made against
allamotints owing icr llrc: deblors. rvhich arc iilrrrinri and rna1, bc e:i.pcctcci to becorne iri-ec<>r,crahle

', I

i. ,
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4. Liabilities

4.1 lt4asinde N4 liro [Jniversity of Science and 'leclinology has cornplied with all aspecls of
contractual agre ents that could havc a material effect on the financial slatements in the event of
non-complianc I here has been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities
that could have material ellbct on the financial statemcnts in the event of non-compliance

n no events subsequent to period end that requires adjustment of or disclosure
or notes thereto.

4.3 We are not of any capital expenditure projects enlered into without a legal conlract.
'fhere were no
prevailing mar

commitrnents in cxocss of normal requirements or at prices in excess of

4.2 'fhere have
in the financial

5.2 All known,
should be consi

prrces

5. Other Ma

5.1 There havc no irregularities involving management or employees that have a significant
role in the accou ng and internal control systcms or that could have a material effcct on the

financial

5.3 Masinde M
expenditurc dur
5.4 Except as d

liro University of Sciencc and'lcchnology has not incurred any unauthorized

the year under review
in the financial staterncnts, no transactions involving management and

others requiring
completeness of

isclosure in thc financial statements have been entered in1o. We confirm the

identity of, and

where appropri , adequately discloscd in the financial statements.

5.5 The require tcnder procedures have been followed and no commissions have been received

by any emp of Masinde Muliro lJnivorsity of Science and 'fechnology

Yours Faithfully (t-
r .' l. l1 \

. ] . .rjrlL.ri

1 0 i-lAY 2016

ual or possiblc, non-compliance with laws and regulalions, the effects of which
when preparing financial statements, have been disclosed to the auditors.

information provided regarding the identification of related parties. 1'he

nces and transactions with, related parties have bccn properly recorded and,

t:l(-i
r t i' :

Ir.A.O Otieno. P D
VICE CHAN

J.K. Rotich , Ph.

DEPUTY VI CHANCELLOR (A&r')

B.N. Ogama B MBn, C.P.A. (K)
FFTCERA.G FINANCB

R
iit.' ,.,i'..liiil.(''

o

'jt,,
v

/trd.'
trO1, rrgrt



\TXtr. CORI'ORATEGOVER.NANCESTATEMENT

Masinde Muliro I.Jniversity of Science and Teohnology (MMLIS't') is committed to demonstrating
best practice in oorporate governance. The University has a dut1, 1s conduct affairs in a

responsible and transparent way, and to take into account the requirements of funding bodies and
other stakeholders.

'Ihis surnmary describes the manner in which the University has applied the principles of
governance in the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial statements.

The University's Council is responsible for ensuring a sound system of internal control that
supports the achievement of policies, aims and objectives, u,hiie safeguarding the public and other
funds and assets for which the Counci! is responsible. The system of internal control is designed
to manage raiher than eliminate the risk o1'failure to achievc policies, aims and objectives; it can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness against material
misstatement or loss,

The University Council has adopted a statement of primary rcsponsibilities, which is published on
the tJniversity's Strategic plan and website. This statement sets out the Council's responsibilities
in respect of the proper conduct of public business, strategic planning, monitoring effectiveness
and performance, finance, audit, estate management, human resource management, equality and
ciiversity, student welfare, health and safety and the appointment of the Uriiversity Officers.

'I'he Universitl, Council meets at least four times per year and has a number of committees
including: an Audit Committee; a Strategy and Financc Committee'; a Human Resources
Committee; and a Nominations Commitlee. All of these Committees are formaily constituted with
terms of reference and are compriscd mainly of independent members. Each Committee is
Chaired by an independerlt member. All sub committees review and reflect orr their work and
provide an annual report to the University Council.

The Finance, Planning and General Purposes Committee recommends the [Jniversity's annual
budgets to the Council, the Norninations Cornrnittee considers nominations for vacancies in the
Governing i:ioCy membership for appro.;al, ';he Human Resources Llcmmittee monltors health and
safety and ecluality and diversity matters and also meets as the Remuneration Cornrnittee annually
to determirie the remuneration uf scnior rrembers of staff inciuding the Vice Chanceilor. The
Audit Committee meets three times a year, wil.h internal and external auditr.rrs in attendance. T'his
Commitlee includes two independent co-opted members from the public and private sector who
are noi members of the (]overning tsociy u,ho providc cxiernaiiiy to the Conrmlttee's
deliberations. The Audit Committee considers detailcd reports with recommendations for the
improvement of systems of internal control and monitors implementation of thc
recommendations. Prior to every Audit Committee the Committee meets privately with the
[Jniversity's internal and external auditors without University officers present.

A Registcr of conflict of Intcrcsts is maintaincd and dcciarzrtions of any conflicts of intercst arc
made at the start of each Committees and Council meeting.

ln orcier to ensure the eff'ectiveness of the system of internai controi, in addition to meeting at
regular intervais. the Council rc,;cives lhe minutes and, a reporl irurn tirc Chair of thc Audit
Committee at each Council meeting which includes steps being taken by the University to manage
risks. Auciit (iomrnittee dlso provicles oversight'of the University's risk management processes
and considers rcsula.r reporls Iiom tlic {iniversitv's independtnl inlernal audit. which includes the
internal auciitor's independcnt opinion on thc adequacy and cttcctivcncss tii'thc l.lnir,crsit\,'s t'
systern of ihtcrnal sontrol. : : : '' '1'
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The Council's
work of the
development,and
extcrnal auditors

VIfi. CORPOR,,A
Masinde Muliro

responsibly, ethi

environment as

with high stan

i. The

ii. The err

iii. Students,

iv. Commu

v. 'fhe Uni
commun

l'o this end: -
i. The tlni

a ne1 posi

ii. 'fhe Uni
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vi. Thc Uni
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ew of the effectiveness of the systen"r of internalcontrol is also infonned bythe
ior managelrent within the [Jniversity, who have responsibility for the

rna,intenancc o{'the intcrnal control fi-anttwotli, and by commcnts inade by the

their rnanagement lotter

SOCIAN- R.E,SI'ONSNtsXI,XT'Y STAT'EMENT
lJniversity of Science and 'fechnology recognizes its obiigations to act

and with integrity in its dealings with staff, customers, neighbours and the

whole. f'he institution operates in a socially responsible arrd ethical manner,

of integrity and practice. Key atnong these are:-

and safety of individuals, including staff, students and other stakeholders,

impacted activities i s protcctcd;

is managed sustainably as far as practicable;

and other stakeholders are treated with dignity;

access to, and engagement in, lJniversity activities is as wide as practical; and

sity is engaging with, learning from, respecting and supporting the

es and cultures with which it works.

ity is undertaking a greening initiative ciarifying its oommitment to delivering
ve impact on the environment

is proud that its management is recognized through ISO9001:2008

n

rsity has established a "Talents scholarship" fund through which it supports its

ility objectives.

ty has established an "internship: program to assist young people gain work

ity has MOU with KNUT in which it offers 15% discount on tuition to KNUT
their dependents.

rsity has a fees waiver of 50o/o for staff dependent.

ity liaison office whose activities resonate well with thal of thc community

ity donates management time to promote sustainability both within the

n the environmental management profession, and through presentations at

lectures at universittes.

ponsibilities and Authorities

hanoellor who is the CEO is responsible for shaping an organizational culture

t with professional standards that js conducive to achieving the objectives of

The tjni
industry,



The Community Liaison Officer Engagement is responsible for developing. reviewing and
implementing policies, procedures and guidelines that specify the University's reqgirements
on matters relating to community engagement.

The DVC Pianning Research and Innovations is aiso responsible for monitoring that such
activities are carried out, as appropriate, in compliance with relevant Universit5, policies and
procedures;

The Registrar Administration is responsible fcrr developing, reviewing and implementing
policies, procedures and guidelines that relate to employee health and safety.

The DVC Administration and Finance, is aiso responsible for monitoring that such activities
are carried out, as appropriate, in compliance with relevant University policies. procedures
and statutes.

iX. REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

The Liniversity Council submit their report together rvith the audited financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2015 which show the state of Masinde Muliro University of Science and
Technology's affairs.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the University are teaching, research, innovations and extension
senrices.

Results
The financial results of the { Iniversit), for the year ended June 3 0, 201 5 are set out on pages 16 to
I9"

University Council

The members of the Board of University Council who served during the year are shown on page
4-5. In accordance rvith Reguiation of the Universities Act 2012. The Clrairman and mernbeis of
the University Council are appointed for a period of 4 years with a possibility of renewal by thc
Cabinet Secretary; ministry of Education, Science and Technology. Reappointment is done by the
Ministrv of Education Science and Technology.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Masinde Muliro University of
Scienoe and Technology in accordance with the Public Finance Management (pl"'M) Act, Z()l?.,
which empowers the Auditor General to nominatc othcr auditors to carry out the audit on his
behalf.

By Ordor of thc University Council e',
i' ...,.1-t):-

Dr. Davicl Nyamwaya \*+-r*f.\r'-- f.i

Chairman of Clouncil '4""1 '' \ .-'".t:L:- ''.\
D"^f A.U 0tieno

Vice Chancellor

Masinde Muiiro University of Science and Technolo-W._-,
Kakamega. r 1,.'",' N

,.;+
I)ate:25'n Septertrbci 2C I 5

i 1\ tn*s ,//itl
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nance Management A,ct,2012 and the State Ccr;oorations Act, require the University
financiai statements in respect or'Masinde Mulirc University of Science anci

Technology, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Universiry at the end of
ycarlpcriod and thc operating results of the University fbr that yearlperiod. Thethc financ

University I is also requireci to ensure that the University keeps proper accounting records
which discl
Council is

The Public
Councii to

the Uni'rers
controi.

Dr. David waya
Chairman of

The Univers Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the University's
financial which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University for and

as at the end the financial year (period) ended on June 30,2015. This responsibiiify includes:
adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to(i) maintai

be effective ughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which
disclose reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the University; (iii)

plementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
of the hnancial Statements, and ensuring that they are free from material

designing, i

presentation
whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the University; (v)

selecting and lying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) rnaking accounting estimates that
are reasonab in the circumstances

The Univers Council accept responsibility for the UnirrcrsiV's financial statements, which have

using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
estimates, in conformity with International F-inancial Reporting Standards (IFRS),

been
judgements
and in the required by the PFM Act and the State Corporations Act. The University Council
are of the op
University's
financial pos

on thatthe University's financial statements give zlrue and fair view of the state of
Curing the financial year ended June 30, 2015, and of the lJni',zersiW's

as at that date. The University Council fi;rther confirm the completeness of the
accounting maintained for the Universify, which harze been relied upon in the preparation of

with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the University. The Universify
responsible for safeg,;arding the assets of the Liniversity.

s financial statements as y,rell as the adequacy ci the systems of internal financial

Nothing has tc the attention of the University Counoil to indicate thatthe University will not
remaln a concern for at least the next twelve months flom the date of this statement

,{pproval of financial staterments

The Uni
signed on its

's financial statemenrs were anoroved bv the Eoard on 25h Sentember 2015 and
half by:

Prof Fredrick. A.O. Otieno
Vice Chancelloril

rl{
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P-O. Rox 30084-00!00

NAIROBI

Eli

Telephonc: +254-2Q-14?71(.t,

Fax: +254-20-3 I 1482

E-mail : oag(@oagkenya. go.ke
Website: www.kenao.go.kc

SCIENCE

RTO

:,fP. OFFICE OF

REPORT O THE AUDITOR-G
D TECHNOLOGY

THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ,,,:,
\$,.+. 3\'!.,.'* -\r.' "'."

ENERAL ON MASINDE MULIRO UNIVERSITY OF
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

ffi;qfi":
CIAL STA

panying fi ments of e Muliro Uni
Technology set out on pages 16 to 41 , which comprise the statement of
ition as at 30 June 2015, and the statement of financial performance,

changes in net aSSetS, statement of cash flows and statement of
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant unting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with

the provisio of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 14 of the Public
Audit Act,2
best of my k

03. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
edge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

Manageme 's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Manageme is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
ments acggrdance with lnternational Public Sector-{ccounting Standardp

) and'for Such internal control as managementdetermines is necbssary"(Accrua
to enable
misstateme

preparation of financial statements that are free from material
whether due to fraud or error

The manage ent is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to
..''the Auditor- ene r4!' jn accordance with'[he provisions of Section 13 of the Pijblic
'Audit Act, 2

Audito eral's Responsibility

ltly responsi
audit and re

ility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on the
in accordance with the provisions of Section 15 of the Public Audit

Act, 2003 d submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the
The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of

aud
Science a
financial p
statement
compaflson

Constitution

Reporl d thc .4

irrnc )0 i.,t

Supreme
ethical requ
reasonable urance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatem

lnstitutions (lSS$19) Those stan{ar$s require complianrqe with
ents and that thb audit be plannbd and performed 'tii obtain

al;-

't
rtrr Nltt.sintlc Mltrliro [Jntversitv ttf .sc'ienc'c und Technttlttgv.fitr tha vcut ended 30



ffiiirri'rr
"'r ' ':;ii'l'' :- 

: ': : :

i. ; ' : , .,,:,,., 
.,., ,, 

i i ,, . ,

An audit involves performing pi:ocedurds,to obtain audit evidence about'the amounts
and disclosures in the financial i(atements: The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the finqnp,ial: slatements1.lr41[eJher,'due tq fraud-:or:error. ln.makinq those risks
*assessiii'ents, the aqditor i8fr'sioers interaai iorftrbt'reievant to thu "iitii/, 

preparation
'5hd fair presentatioh"bf the financial stat'Bments in order to iiEsign "riit 

pro"edriibs
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the management, as we I as evaluating the overa
p ion of the fina ments

;$e #i,' 
tjH

./l-',. .r:;' .
rs'Eufircreat the audit ce obtained nt and app to provide

basis for my adverse audit opinion.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1.0 Accuracy and Gompleteness of the Financiat Statements

fhe 201412015 financial statements opening balances differed by Kshs.92742,452
from the 201312014 certified financial statements closing balances as shown below:-

Item
Statement of Financial
Performance

-544,446,814.00

Further, payment vouchers amounting to Kshs.10,829,324 were not posted in the
system and therefore were omitted from the financial statements. ln addition the
financial statements figures differed with the explanatory notes resulting to a
cumulative difference of Kshs 235,940,197 as shown below:-

{

t-.;t

lleport oJ'the Aiditttr-(iencral on Mu.sirula rVtrliro t-/niversity rl Scianc'e und'l-ttchnologt.Jitr tha )tettr anlacl j.,.
30 June,20l5 4 ,, ;t

2

Certified 2014
Kshs.

_!e_pgrte!l 2Q15
Kshs.

Variance
Kshs.

Income - GOK Capital
Grants

0.00 79,538,440.00 -79,538,400.00

Expenditure -Capital
Development WIP

0.00 -172,280,902.00 172,29O,902.00

Differences 92,742,642 00
Statement of Changes in
Equity: -!.

Opening balance in
accumulated Funds

-451,704,362.00 92,742,452.00



Variance
(Kshs.)

Reported financial
statement amount

(Kshs.)

Amount Reported
in the Notes

(Kshs.)

Item

12,380,636 505,500IGU lncon te 12,886,136
19,81 9,1 98443,103,802 424,284,604General

Expenses
185,346,1 16 (74,510,178Receivabl

from Excl^
Transacti<

fQ

ange
,IS

1 10,835,938

99,203,236(262,630,241 (361,314,986)Accumula
Surplus

:ed

2,011,080,619 191,922,351Reserves 2,203,002,970
Total

System of t e University were inaccurate

ln the circu Stances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements for
the year en ed 30 June 2015 could not be ascertained

2.0 Going ncern

The Univ ity posted unconfirmed surplus of Kshs.202,931,828 (201312014

Also, the t
and s

Kshs.(91,
reducing

operations
support by

the Unive
ended 30

Report oJ the
30 Jttne 20 I 5

2 507 198 605 2,271 258 408 197

I balance, statement of financial performance, statement of cash flows
nt of financial position generated from the ABNO UniSol lnformation

4,282) before provision for bad debts of Kshs.'19,800,000 thereby
the accumulated surplus to Kshs.(361,314,986) (201312014'.

creditors

ty failed to comply with the budget and budgetary control during the year
ne 2015

Atrclitor-General on Masincle Mulit'o University ry' Scienc'a uncl'l'echnologv./br the yeetr ended

Kshs.(544, ,814). The University also operated on a negative working capital of
Kshs.393,
the Unive

,815 (201312014 Kshs.565,952,810). Due to unfavorable cash position,
ity was unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fell due

ln particul
arrears of

, it failed to pay Privately Sponsored Students Programme (PSSP)
s.135,000,000, Tax arrears of Kshs.257,460,877, other creditors of

Kshs.283, 5,489 and construction bills of Kshs.18,870,515

Consequ tly, the going concern of the University is threatened and its future
and existence is dependent on continued Government funding and

3.0 Budg and Budgetary Control

The Unive ity made revenue collection of Kshs.35,229,300 against a budget of
Kshs.1 40,
Further, t
addition s

50,000 resulting to a revenue shortfall of Kshs.105,720,700 (75%)
University incurred an over-expenditure of Kshs.98,998,097 and in

nt Kshs.40,651,914 on unbudgeted items without approval. As a result,

3



4.0 Unsupported Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.71,944,734 as at 30 June 2015
differed with the bank statement balance of Kshs.31 1,294,O27 resulting to an
unreconciled variance of Kshs.239,349,293.

Consequently, the accuracy of the cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.71 ,944,734 could not be confirmed as at 30 June 2015.

5.0 Non-Current Assets

The non-current assets balance stood at Kshs.2,134,496,125 as at 30 June 2015.
However, the property, plant and equipment (PPE) balance of Kshs.2,62s,02s,741
before depreciation was not supported with an updated fixed assets register (FAR).
Further, an undetermined value of intangible assets (software) has been omitted from
the financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the non-current assets
balance of Kshs.2,134,496,125 could not be confirmed as at 30 June 2015.

6.0 Refundable Deposits and Employee Benefits

Refundable deposits from customers balance of Kshs.75, 667,654 as at 30 June
2015 was not represented by an equivalent bank balance or security as required.
Equally employee benefit obligation of Kshs.67,303,279 was not secured by
equivalent bank deposits or fund. The management has not explained how it intends
to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

7.0 Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The receivables from exchange transactions balance stood at Kshs.110,835,938 as
at 30 June 2015. However, note 12 to the financial statements reflects an
outstanding balance of Kshs.185,346,116 resulting to an unexplained difference of
Kshs74,510,178. Further, the University has eight thousand four hundred and seven
(8,407) students in the system expected to pay Kshs.589,637,650 during the year.
However, two thousand three hundred and eighteen (2,318) students have not been
invoiced resulting in an understatement of student debtors of Kshs.154,258,838 as
only Kshs.237,378,812 was captured as receipted and Note 12 also reflects a
student's debtors balance of Kshs.198,000,000. ln addition, the system had
inadequate input and validation controls as fourteen (14) students were defined more
than once, seven (7) had incomplete names, eleven had invalid student numbers
while several debit and credit notes had no records in the system. Student payments
without reference to student numbers or admission numbers were not captured or
linked in the system. This scenario reveals gross understatement of university

Reporl rf'the Autlitor-General on Mu.sincle Mtrliro {Jniver.siltt o/'St'iencc und Technologv for thc ltcat'endetl
30 Junc 20 I 5
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revenue fro its main Sources of tuition fees, student accommodation charges and

rncome ge rating units

ln view of
Kshs.1 1 0,8

8.0 lrregula

An analysis
referred to
allowances
bargaining
details on th

ln my opini
Adverse O

e foregoing, the receivables from exchange transaction balance of

,935 could not be ascertained.

Other Personal Allowances

payroll data for the period January to June 2015 revealed an earning
other personnel allowances' payment of Kshs.2,687,398. However, the
o not conform to any of the allowances contained in the collective
reement for UASU, KUDHEHIA and KUSU. Further, no guidelines or
payments of the allowances were provided for audit review.

ln the circu nces, the propriety and authenticity of the other personnel allowances
payment of hs.2,687,398 could not be confirmed

Adverse Op nton

o because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
ion paragraph, the financial statements do not present fairly the
on of the Masinde Muliro University of Science and Technology as at

Payments for Library SYstem

procured and installed a library security system at a cost of

financial p
30 June 201 , and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then

ended, in a ance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
not comply with the Universities Act, 2012.Basis) and d

Other Matte

n

ity

I draw atte
within the U

1. Nuga

ion to the following matters which describe major operational issues

ersity

The Uni
Kshs.8,283, 0.65. The system has however, remained nonfunctional with no

r sale service and maintenance. The University has not obtained
ey from the expenditure of the library system

on Ma.sintlc l\luliro {Jniversitlt rtf scicnce and 'l'echntilogv /br the year enclecl

5

evidence of
value for mo

Report o/ the A

30.lunc 2015

ln the circum tances, the expenditure of Kshs.8,283,381 is nugatory payment.

2. lnfo ation Technology (lT) Governance

The Univers s lT governance in general and aPP ication controls were inadequate
Further, sta handling the system have not been ful y trained while all the EnterPrise

Resource P gramme (ERP) twelve (12) modules have not been implemented. The



non-use of specialty modules like for part-time lecturing have led to use of manual
procedures in paying part-time lecturers. This increases risk of errors and over
payments.

My opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters

n

FCPA Edward R. O. Ouko, CBS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

21 November 2016

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Masinde Muliro University of Scie'nce and Technologt for the year ended
30 June 201 5
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XII. STATEME

For the year end

Revenue from no
transactions
Public contributi
GOK Recurrent

GOK Capital Grant

Sub-Total
Revenue from
Rendering of servi

IGU lncome

Other lncome

Sub-Total

Total revenue

Expenses

Bulk purchases of
Employee costs

Depreciation and

Repairs and ma

Contracted se

General expenses
Sub Totals

Third Party Tran

Remuneration of
Sub Totals
Capital Develo

Total expenses

other galns/(

Surplus for the
Provision for bad

Prior year adj

Attributable to:
Revenue Rese

l6 l,'ii ;,r:

OF FINANCIAT, PERFORMANCE

30 June 2015
Notes

ange

and donations
nt

ge transactions

2015

1,3 30,031,2s6.00

97,200,000.00

L,427.23L..256.OO

954,251,895.00
12,886,136.00

15,860,957.00

982.998.989.00
2.470,230.245.0O

(15,168,049.00)
(1,4r.8,930,364.00)

(s9,062,388.00)

124,773,O94.0O)
(104,857,591.00)
(443,103,802.00)

(2.05s.8i5.388.001

20t4

1,L84,353,973.L5

79,538,448.00

L.?53.a92,42L.!5

906,800,469.00
8,183,362.00

15,130,050.00

930,113.881.00
2.194.005,302.15

(23,957,066.00)
(1,475,530,517.00)

(45,425,003.58)

{.25,884,775.98)
(9s,928,410.18)

(428.1.82,703.25\
(2.095.908.476.09)

ShsShs

1,

2

3.a
3.b
3.c

ater and electricity

mortization expense

ctions

uncil

nt WIP

ebts
ent

4

5

7

8

9

10

6 (11,2s4,86s.0O)
(17,2s4.865.00)

,124,L48,764.0O\

Q,207.298,4L7.OOl

Nil

2O2,931,828.OO
(19,800,000.00)

Nil

117 ,791.,207 .OO)

(17.797,207.O01
/172.280,902.00)

(2.285.380,s85.09)

. Nil

(9L,374,281.931
(20,777,496.20)

Nil

183,131,828.00 |,LL2.O97,778.L41

'!,{/
' -#r'ltl,



XIII. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2015
Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables f rom non-exchange
tra nsactions

lnventories

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions

Refundable deposits f rom customers

Employee benefit obligation

Payments received in advance

Total liabilities
Equity

Accumulated surplus

Reserves

Tqtal Equity (net assets and liabilities)

Total liabilities & Equity

848.790.854.00 910.256.375.05

Note
2015

Shs

77,944,734.00
1r"0,835,938.00

259,335,938.00
13.069,429.00

455.185.039.00

zE-4-!go.t25AO.
2.589.682.164.00

705,759,92L.0O

75,667,654.00

67,363,279.O0

{262,630,241.O0)

2,003,002,970.00

t,740.372.729.O0
2.s89.582.164.00

2014

124,779,603.39

198,305,170.05

21",278,792.00

344.303.565.44

.2,po1J8apa433
2.345.484.469.77

814,774,790.OO

77,681,,743.O0

68,271,,646.05

10,128,796.00

(4s1,704,361.00)

1,886,932,455.00

1.435.228.094.00
2.34s.484,469.05

i ii 'r,iAY 2016

Shs

11

1"2

13

1,4

20

1,6

17

18

TheFinancial StatementssetoutonpagesTg to22weresignedonbehalf of theUniversityCouncil by:

Dr. David Nyamwaya

Chalrman of Councll

Date

Prof Fred. A.O Otieno

Vice Chancellor

{
j
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I

, tfi{,',

/{lu;



XIV. S'I A'I'IIMI.,

For the year ende
Reserves

Balance as at 30

Revenue Reserve

Capital Developm

I ncreas e/Decre

Balance as at 30 J

Revenue Reserve

Capital Developm

I ncreas e/Decreas

Balance as at 30 J

Revenue Reserve

Capital Develop

I ncrease/Decre

Balance as at 30 J

XV. STATEM

Cash flows from
Receipts

Public contribu
Government gra

Rendering of se

Other income,
Total Receipts

Payments

Compensation

Rent paid

Other payments

Total Payments

Net cash flows

Cash flows from

Purchase of p

and intangible
Net cash flows
activities
Net incr/(dec) in

Cash and cash

Cash and cash

18l

uivalents at 30l6/ 2075 77, 714_O0

M

OI.'CHANGt,s lN NL,'l ASSI'I I S (ltQUl'IY)

Capital
development

reserve

Accumulatcd surPlu:

Kshs Kshs Ksh s

UNE 2012 1,s07,801,s00.00 (L41",4O9,7 42.00\ 1,3 56,391,7s8.00

30 June 2015

r the year
G ra nts

Totcl

(290,94s,294.0O], 1290,945,294.0O)
206,850,053.00206,850,053.00

206,8s0,0s3.00 (290,94s,294.O0) (84,09s,241.00)

1.,714,551,553.00 (432,355,035.00) 7,282,296,517.OO

(LL2,O91.,778.74l {11"2,097,778.1.4)
772,280,902.0O172,280,902.00

172,280,902.00 (LL2,091.,778.74l 60,789,123.81

1,885,932,455.00 .544,446,814.L4) 7,342,485'640.87

183,131,828.00 183,131,828.00
1.24,148,1-64.O0124,148,L64.00

124,148,164.00 183,131,828.00 307,279,992.O0

2,011,080,619.00 (361,314,986.14) L,649,765'632.87

in Equity

NE 2013

tn

the year
G ra nts

Equity

E2014

the year
G ra nts

Eq u ity

E 2015

nt

in

N

OIT (]ASII F-LOWS

ng activities

and donations
and subsidies

es

and agency fees

employees

operating activities

investing activities

, plant, equipment

in investing

and cash equivalents

uivalents at 1July 2014

Note

L,.a

r..b

2

5

9

6,8,9,10

20

20t4-2015
Kshs

1,330,031,256.00
97,200,000.00

954,251,896.00
28,1 47 ,093 .OO

2,4LO ,23O ,245 .OO

(1,418,930,364.00)
(68,9r 6,6s0.00)

2013-2014
Kshs

1,184,353,973.15
79,538,448.00

906,800,469.00
23,31-3,4\2.00

2,194,]-73,632.40

(s35 R51 00)

(1,47s,s30,s 17.00)
(s2,6s4,909.00)

(496 ,342 ,7 36.43\

(2.024.087.865.00)

385.742,799.O0

12 ,024 s28 .L62 .431

769.645.469.97

(162.537.066.00) {198,487,374.O0\

L2

20

(162,537,065.00)
(796,724,337.OO],

124. 603 00

1L9a,487 ,37 4.00!,

91,331,381.41

33,448,222.00

724,779,603.00



XVI. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BTJDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Original budget Adjustments Final budget
Actual on

comparable
basis

Performance
difference

2014-2015 2014-2015 2014-2015 20]4-20L5 2014-2015
Revenue Kshs'000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000 Kshs'000
Public

contributions
and donations

2,753,117,215.00 1,423,085,9s9.00 1,330,03 1,256.00 7,427,231,256.00 97,200,000.00

Rendering of
services

958,947,000.00 (231,405,780.00) 1,190,353,780.00 953,733,315.00 (236,520,465.00)

Sale of goods 48,345,208.OO 5,780,208.00 42,555,000.00 28,747,093.OO (13,817,907.00)

Total income 3,760,409,423.00 !,797,459,387.O0 2,562,950,036.00 2,41O,23O,245.O9 (152,7L9,79L,AO!,

Expenses

Compensation
of emolovees

2,726,583,977.00 1,170,892,358.00 1,555,691,619.00 1,418,930,364.00 136,751,255.00

Goods and

services
7,024,570.O0 (448,975,430.00) 4s0,000,000.00 306,061,158.00 1"43,938,842.O0

Rent paid 18,657,172.OO (4L,342,828.00]. 50,000,000.00 68,916,5s0.00 (8,916,650.00)
Other
payments 7,O1"4,743,704.O0 515,885,287.00 497,258,417.OO 413,390,245.00 83,868,t72.O0

Total
expenditure

3,760,4O9,423.00 1,t97,459,387.O0 2,562,950,035.00 2,207,298,417.O0

Surplus for
the period 202,93L,828.OO 202,931,828.00

355,651,619.00

\-'
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ii{t-l
I:.q*

19 l:"' r, .



XVII. NOTF]

l. Sta

'l-he Uni
cornply w

currencv

all the

The

stated oth

financial

2. Surn

A)

i)

Fces,

The Uni
and the a

attached

recognlze

probable

asset will
reliably

'f rans
Revenues

measured

SCTVICCS

and can

ii)
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ent of compliance and lrasis of preparation - II]SAS 1

ty's financial statements havc bcen prepared in acc<lrdance with and

International Public Sector Accounting Starrdards (ll'}SAS). fhc financial

statements are presentcd in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting

the Univcrsity. 'l'hc accounling policies have been consistcntly applied to

presentcd.

ial statcmcnts have been prcpared on the basis of hislorical cost, unless

isc. 'l'hc cash flow statemenl is prepared using thc direct rnethod. The

temenls are prepared otr accrual basis

ry of significant accounting policies

recognition

nue from non-exchangc transactions - IPSAS 23

and fines
ity rec<>gnizes revenues frotn fees, taxes and fines whcn the event occurs

recognition criteria are mct. To thc cxtent thal there is a relatcd condition

at would give rise to a liability to rcpay the amount, deferred income is

instead ol'revenue. Other non-exchange revcnucs are rocognized when it is

at the future economic bcncfits or service potential associated with the

flow to the University and the fair value of the asset can, be measured

from other government entities
liom non-cxchange transaolions with other governlrlent entities are

fair value and recognized on obtaining control of thc asset (cash, goods,

d propcrty) if the transfer is free frorn conditions and it is probable that the

fits or servicc potential rclated to the asset will flow to the Universityeconomlc

mcasurcd re liably

ue liom exchangc transactions - IPSAS 9

Renderin of serviccs

'fhe Univ ity rccognizes revenue fi'onr rendering of services by reference to the

pletion when the outcomo of thc transaotion can be estimated reliably
'I'he stage

percentag

cornpletion is measured by refcrencc to labour hours incurred to date as a

it .'
T'{ffir'
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Where the contract outcorne cannol be measured reliably, rer./errue is recognized onl1,

to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when thc significant risks and rewards

of ownership have bcen transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and

when the amount of revcnue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to thc
University.

Interest income
Interest income is aocrucd using the effective yield rnethod. The effective yield
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financialasset
to that asset's net carrying arnount. J'he method applies this yield to the principal
outstanding to determine interest income each period.

Dividends
DividenCs cr similar distributions must be recognizeC u'lrerr the shareholder's or the
I Iniripr,;i1rr's riCrht l1r ypnciric nr\/mpntq i" eStabliShed.

Rcntal income
Rental income arising from operating ieases on investmcnt properties is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.'

R) Rudget infornration - IPSAS 24

Thc annual budget is prcparcri on thc accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and

itrcottre are presented in a single statcnreut to deteuninc the nceds of the [Jnivcrsit,v .

As a result of the adoption of the accrual basis for budgeting purposes, there are no

basis, timing or University diflerences that would requirc reconciliation belween the
actual comparable amounts and the amounts presented as a separate additional
financial statement in the stateurent of comparisou of budget and actuai alltounts.

(-)) 'l'axes - IAS l2
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liahilities for the currenl period are meAsured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates

and tax laws used to cornpuie ihe amount are those that arc enacted or substantivelv
uttac[cd, at [lrc l'cpor{.itrg tiaLr irr tirc art:a wlrcrrE {.1rc ljrrivcrsiiy olrcrai"cs arrtJ gerreratcs

raxable income.

Current income tax relatirrg to iterns recognized directly iir net assets is recognized in
net assets and not in the staterne nt iif'financial performance. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tar returns with i'csncci to situations in which

V
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fhe carryi
rcduoed to

availablc
defcrred

exlent lhat

tax assot to

Deferred

apply in
(and tax la

Deferrcd

outside s

Deferred

assets.

Defcrred

cxists to

deferred

Sales tax

Expenscs

tax.regulations etrc srLlb.jcct 1o intcrpretaLion and csl"ahlishes provisions

is provided using the liability rnethod on temporary differcnoes between

s of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial repofting

the rcporting datc.

liabilities arc rcoognized for all taxable l.emporary differences, cxcept in

taxable tcmporary dil'ferenccs associated with investlnents in controlled

iates and intcrcsts in -loint ventures, when the tirning of the reversal of
differences can bc controlled and it is probablc thal the temporary

will not revcrse in thc foreseeabie future

assets are recogniz.ed for all deductiblc temporary differences, the carry

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are

to the extcnt that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against

deductible temporary differences, and thc carry fbrward of unused tax

unused tax losses can be utilized, except in respcct of deductiblc

diflerences associated with investmcnts in controlled cntities, associates

in.ioint vcnturcs, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent

babie that the temporary differences will revcrse in thc foreseeable future

profit will be available against which the tcmporary diffbrences can be

g amount o1'dclbrred tax assels is reviewed at each rcporting date and

exlent that it is no Ionger probablc that sul'ficient taxable profit will bc

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized

assets'are re-assessed at each repofting dale and are recognized to the

it has becomc probable that future laxable profits will allow the deferred

be recovered

assets and liabilitics arc measured at thc tax ratcs that are expected to

ycar when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates

) that have been enactcd or substantivcly enacled at the reporting date'

relating to items recognized outsidc surplus or delrcit is recognized

lus or deficit

itcrrrs are rccogniz-cd in correlation 1o the undcrlying transaction in nct

assets and deferred tax liabilitics are o{{.sel if a legally enforceable right

off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the

s relate to thc samc taxable University and the same taxation authority.

lL'

6'fti
assets arc recognized nct of the amounl of sales tax, except:



F When the sales tax incurred on a purohase of assets ot' services is tiot

recoverable frorn the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is
recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the

expense item, as applicable

F Wlien receivablcs and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax

included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is

included as paft of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

D) Investment prcperty - IPSAS 16

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The

carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing

investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met

and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an investment property.

Inrrestment properiy acquired throtigh a non-exchange transaction is mcasured at its

fair value at the date of acquisiticn. Subsequent tc initial recognition, int,cstment
nrnnertipc .?!.e !T!enqr !!-arl rrcipo the e ncl tr"Odel .anf! Zrt denfeCiated crver a jO-veaf

vs gr.rrD

period.

investment propertics are derecognized either wiren they irave been disposed of or

when the investment property is permanently withdrawn fiom use and no future

economic benefit or servicc potential is expected fionr its disposal. The difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized

in tlre surpliis or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made tcl or from investmenl properfy only when there is a change in use

E) Property, plant and equipment - IPSAS l7

Ail propcrry-, plant and cquipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciatit;n and

impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributabie to the

acquisition of thc itcms. When significant parts ol propcrty, plant and equiptreut are

required to be replaced at intervals, the lJniversity recognizes such parts as individual

assets rryith specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise. when a

rnajol inspection is performed, its cosl is rcougtrizud in thc carrying anloultt of the

plant and equiprnent as a replacement it the recognition criteria are satis;fied, All other

repair arrd rrrairr[cnauL;c r,usLs arc rrr-r-,gtii;,rti ir., siiiiriiis or dcil;it as incut-rcd. Whcrc

an asset rs acquired tn a non-exchange trans;acticln lor nil or nomtnal cctnsideraticin the

asset is inltially measured at its lair valiie. Y

,flt
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on the re
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capital
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'[-he use
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!r) I-eascs I[,SAS 13

arc leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and bencfits

incidental owncrship of the leased item to the lJniversity. Assets held undcr a

are capiLalizcd at thc col-tltlellccuetrt of thc lcasc at thc fair value o1'the

lcased pro

payrnents.

or, if lower, at the prcscnt value of the future minimum lease

Univcrsity also rccognizcs the associated lcasc liability at the inception

The liability recognized is measured as the present value of the futurc

mlnllTlum payments at initial recognition

Subsequen to initial rccognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance

reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest

ining balancc of the liability. Ilinance chargcs arc recognized as finance

lus or dcficit.

An asset

Itlowever,

under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset

therc is no reasonable ccrtainty that the Univcrsity will obtain ownership

by the cnd of the lease term, the assct is depreciated over the shorter of the

estimated I lifs ofthe asset and thc lcasc tenn

Operating
incidental

arc leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits

ownership of the leased itcrl to the Univcrsity. Operating lease payments

are recogn as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis

lerm

assets - IPSAS 3l

Intangible assets acquircd separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of
intangible scts acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost lcss

any accu

generated

ulated amortization and accumulated impairrnent losses. Internally

intangible asscts, cxcluding capitalizcd dcvelopment costs, are not

and expenditure is rellected in strrplus or deficit in the pcriod in which thc

is incurred.

lifc o1-thc intangible assels is assessed as eilher finitc or indefinite

II) Resea h and development costs

ity expenses rescarch costs as incurred. Development costs on an

project arc recogniz,ed as intangible asscts when the University can
The Univ
individual

)'l'he
av

FIts i

technical feasibility of cornpleting the assct so that the asset will be

le for use or sale

to complete and its ability to usc or scll the asset

>H

24lPar

thc asset urill generalc futurc economic bctrcfits or servicc potential
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FThe avaiiability olresources to completc rhe asset

FThe ability to n'leasure reliably thc cxpenditurc dr.rring development

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is
amortized over the period of expected future benefit. During the period of
development, the assel is tested for irnpairrncnt annualll, with any impairment losses
recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

I) Financial instruments - IPSAS 29

Financial assets

trnitial recognition and measurement
Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 F'inancial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are classified as financial assets al fair value through surplr-rs or deficit,
loans and receivabies, held-to-maturity investments or avaiiable-for-sale financial
assets, as appropriate. 'l'he University dctermines the classification of its financial
assets at initia! recognition.

Loans and receivables
l,oans and receivables are non-derivative finanoial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are ,subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, iess impaimrcnt. Amoftized cost is calcuiated by taking into account
anY discount or premiutn on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral parl of
the effecl.ivc intcrest rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognizecl in the
surplus or dcficit.

Held-to-maturity
Non-clerivative financial assets with fixed or detcrminable payments and fixed
mattlrifies are classificd as hclci to mafurity when the University has the positive
intention ant! ability to hold it to nnaturity. After initial measuremenr. held-to-ma.turili,
investments are lleasureci at amortized cost uslng the ettective interest methocl. less
irrtpairrncnL. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
ltrerrtitrtrl on ac:rlttisilir-rn ancl lces or costs that are an integral part of the effective
iutercst rate. 'l'lte losscs arising liom impairment are recognized in surplus or cleficit.

I mpairmen t crt' lin an r:ial assets

I he University assesses at each reporting date rvhether thcre is objectrve cvidcncc that
a financial asset or a Universi6,- of financial asscls is impairecl. A financial asset or a
University of financial assets is deemed to be impaireri if, and only if. thcre is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of onc or rnore events that has occui:red
,,4,..- !i- 1 :. :.,' i .. ..,.uircr rilc iitir"rai i{-Jolliiltion ol the assci (ai-r iiicitir.eti 

-iirss cvuiii') aud ihat'inss cvcnr
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has , en. i on thc: cstimated fitture cash flou's of thc financial asset or the

Univcrsity f financial assets that can be reliably estimatcd. Evidence of impairrnenl

may inclu the following indicators:

debtors or a Univcrsity of debtors arc cxperiencing significant financial

culty

It or delinquency in interest or principal payments

>Th probability that dcbtors will entcr bankruptcy or other financial

rzatron

Ie data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash

(e.g. changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with

Irs)

J) Financi
trnitial

measured

II'SAS 29.

Arnortized

di

Invcntory
was recei

the cost o

Itrinancial I ilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities

at fair val through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. 'fhe

l-lniversity ines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition

All financ liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans

and plus directly attributable transaction cosls

Loans a borrowing
After ini recognition, intcrest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently

amortized cost using the effective intercst method. Gains and losses are

in surplus or deficit when the liabilitics are derecognized as wcll as

through effective intcrest rnethod amoftization process.

5

cost is caloulated by taking into account any discount or premiutn on

and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate.acqulsrtlo

K) Inven ries - IPSAS 12

s rneasured a1 cost upon initial recognition. 'fo the extent that inventory

I liabilities
gnition and measurcment

shed good S and work n

o ffIan ufactu n ob over

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost),

inventory is its fair value at the datc of acquisition.

Costs in bringing each product to its prescnt location and condition is

accounted as follows

materials: purchase cost using the weightcd average cost method

progrc ost o ircctS df
f head S d

d

26 li'r.. I

ty but e XC lu ng borrowing costs

base o

nraterials and labor and a "il,
n the normal or"rori"* 

,fu:j



After initial recognition, inventory is nieasured at tlie lower of cost aird net realizable
value. llowever, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no
charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is rneasured at the lower of cost
and currerit replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estirnated costs necessary tcl make the
sale, exchange, or distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deploired fbr utilization or
consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Univcrsity.

L) Provisions - IPSAS 19

Provisions are recognized when the [Jniversity has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic beneflts or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the an']ount of the obligation.

Where the iJniversity expects some or all of a provisron 1o be r.eim-bLrrsed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial
performance net of any reimburscmcnt.

Continqent Iiabilities
The Llniversity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of an-\,

contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources entbodying ecotrot:ric benefits or sen,icc potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The University does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a
possible asset vr,hose existence is contittgertt on the occun'ence or l)on-ocourrsnce of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the University in
the noles 1o the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continrrallv to
ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the finaircial staterncnts. if it
has beot.'nte viriuall), cct'Lait [tta[ art in{]o,,v ,.tf economio bencfits or ser.,,ico potential
rvill rrt'isc attd thc asscl's t,&lllu uari bu rrrciisulu,l rcliabll , thc assut and the related
revciru( iil'1'11:r.:trgniz,.,ci irr tlic finarruiiii statements o[ the pcriod in rryhich the change
occurs.

il:l!,

1n j
Lt I



M) Nature d purpose of reservcs

'l'hc Uni ity creates and maintains reserves in tcrms of spccific requiremenls. The

University
developme

and also to

margin.

aside rcscrves to pay up tax arrears and also to supplement UUI( capital

1 grant. 'l'hese rescrvcs werc used up to clear thc outstanding tax liabilily
nalise capital projects thus eflectively increasing the equity by a similar

l'he efl-ects

application
changes in accounting policy are applied prospcctivcly if retrospcctive

s irnpractical

O) Em benefits - IPSAS 25

Retiremen bencfit plans

The tini ty provides retiretnent benelits for its employoes. Defined contribution

N) Chan

The Uni

plans are

contributi
constructi
asscts to

pnor
benefits a

Defined
contributi
projected
payments

employers.

benefit obl

in accounting policies and estimatcs - IPSAS 3

ity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively

ost employment benefit plans under which an University pays fixed

s into a scparate [Jnirrersity (a fund), and will havc no legal or

obligation to pay furthcr contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient

all ernployee benefits relating to ernployee scrvice in thc current and

The contributions to fund obligations for thc payment of retirement

charged against incornc in the year in which they become payable.

rrcfit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than dcfined-

plans. The defined bencfit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the

t credit method basis. Deficits identified are rccovered through lump sum

increased future contributions on proportional basis to all participating
'l'he conlributions and lump sulll paylncnts rcducc thc post-employment

P) currency transactions - IPSAS 4

exchange

in lbreign currencies are initially accounted fbr at the ruling rate of
the datc of the transaction. 'frade creditors or debtors denominated in

foreign c
applying

are rcporled at the statctncnt o[ financial position reporling date by

e exchange rate on that datc. Exchange differences arising frorn the

settlement creditcrs, or from the reporting of creditors at rates differcnt from those

were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or

expenses l thc period in which they arise

at which

tr' '

M
28 lPt,t-'.



Q) Bonrorving costs * XPS.AS 5

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifuing assets as part of properfy, plant and
eqr-ripment.

Such borrowing costs are oapitalized over the period during which the assct is being
acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceascs

when construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are chargcd to the
statement of fi nancial perfonnance.

R) Retated parties - IPSAS 2{}

The University regards a related party as a person or a lJniversity with the ability to
exer-t control individually or .jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the
University, or vice versa. Mcmbers of key management arc regarded as related paflies
and comprise the councillors, the executive lrayor, mayoral commitlee members, thc
ciry manager, cieputy city manager anci senior managers.

S) Service concession arrangements - IPSAS 32

The University analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters
into in determining the appropriate accounting trealment anci disclosure requirements.
In particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangemcnt, the
University recognizep that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the
services the operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide
them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than'wholc-of-life' assets, it
controls, through ownership, benefioial entitlement or otherwisc ,- any significarrt
residual interest in the assei a1 the end of the arrangement. Any assets so recognizeci
are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an assel has been recognized, the
llniversity also recognizes a corresponding liability. adjusted b),a cash considcration
paid or received.

T) Cash and cash equivalents

Llash and cash equivaletrts cornprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term
deposits on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity ol'three
nlr-rnths crr lcss, whic,h arc rcadily cottvertible to known amounts of cash and are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Banl< account balances inciude
amounts hcld at thc Central Bank o1'Kenya and at varioiis coinntclcial banks ai ihc
ertd of the f-inancial ),ear. l-or l.hc purposcs o{'these financial statemcnts. cash and cash
eqLrivalents also include shofi term cash imprests and advances tcr authorised public
olficers and/or institutions which werc not surrendereci or accounted for at thc end of
thc financial 1,ear.

nffi



XI) Com rative figures

Whr:rc comparative figures for the previous financial year have been

anrcnded reconfigured to confbrrn to thc required changes in presentation

V) Sign t judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty - IPSAS I

on of the University's financial statements in conformity with IPSASThe prep

requ rres

repofied

agcmcnt to make judgntents, cstimates and assumptions that affect the

ts of revcnues, cxpcnscs, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contln liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. IIowever, uncertainty about

these as ptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material

adjustrn to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods

State all.j estirnatos and assumptions madc: e.g

Ilstim and assumptions

T'he key sumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estirnation

at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustme

year, are

to the carrying amounts o1'assets and liabilities within thc next financial

scribed below. 'fhe University based its assurnptions and estimates on

available whsn the consolidaled financial statements were preparcd.

Ilowcvcr, cxisting circumstances and assumptions about future developmenls may

e to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of thechange d

unccrtai

Univers

I .140

Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when thcy occur. IPSAS

and residual values

livcs and residual values of assets are assessed using the following

intirrrn potential future use and value from disposal:

1 condition of thc assct based on the assessment of experts employed by

[Jniversity
nature ol'the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in

logy and processes

e nature of the proccsses in which the asset is deployed

vailability of funding to replace the asset

hanges in the markct in relation to the asset

Useful li
l'he u

indicators

Provisi<r

Provision

informati
inoludcd

werc raised and management determined an eslimate based on thc

available. Additional disclosurc of thcse estimatcs of provisions is

Notc 36.

l1
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Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present

value where the effect is material.

Assumptions were used in determining the provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites.

l,andfill areas are rehabilitated over years and the assumption was made that the areas

stay the same in size for a number of years.

Provision is made for the estimated cost to be incurred on the long-term

environmental obligations, comprising expenditure on pollution control and closure
over the estimated life of the landfill. The provision is based on the advice and
judgment of qualified engineers.

The estimates are discounted at a pre-lax discount rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money.

The increase in the rehabilitation provision due to passage of time is recognized as

finance cost in the statement of financial performance.

The cost of ongoing programs to prevent and control pollution and rehabilitate the
environment is recognized as an expense when incurred.

W) Subsequent events - IPSAS 14

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant
impact on the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 201 5.
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Notes to the
1. a Public (
Period
July

July

August
September
October
November
Arrears Nove

December
January

February

March

May
June

Refund of Exr

Sub-Total

1.b capital D

Total Grant

2. Rendering
Tuition and I

Tuition Fees I

Tuition Fees i

PhD

Masters
Diploma
Cert & Bridgi

Attachment I

Thesis

ldentity Card

Medical Subs

Activity Fees

Examination
Regist ration
Application
Amenity
Supervision
Field trips
Students Adr
Graduation F

KUCCPS Proc

ICT Ievy

Library Levy

Practical Fee

Other Chargr

32 lPag';

Financial Report
ontribution & Donations

'n ber

:ess CBA Funds

-,velopment Grant - Sub-Total

of services
elated Charges

PSSP)

iAB)

rg Fees

dy

20t4
Shs

638,000,000.00

176,800,000.00

8,800,000.00

11,100,000.00

5,785,950.00

20L5
Shs

,561,736,334.00

1-87,709,747.O0

8,832,000.00

11,102,000.00
4,500,000.00
1,281,000.00

30,870,800.00
1,644,000.00

94L,750.0O
22,1,1,8,750.OO

14,563,000.00
1,7,828,tOO.00

1,963,600.00
4,359,265.00

t4,262,OOO.OO

5,162,000.00
1,864,500.00
5,822,800.00
9,s06,s00.00
3,718,500.00

19,513,000.00
].1",721,990.00

3,769,500.00

9,460,760.00

20L5
Shs

110,835,938.00

110,835,938.00
110,835,938.00
110,835,938.00
110,835,938.00

110,835,938.00
110,835,938.00
110,835,938.00
110,83s,938.00
110,835,938.00
110,83s,938.00
110,835,938.00

1,330.031,256.00

97,200,000.00

1,427 .23L,256.00

20L4
Shs

102,140,000.00

266,200,000.00

72,627,522.1,5

81,570,000.00

95,L73,312.00

80,991,302.00

80,991,302.00

80,991,302.00

80,991,302.00

80,991,302.00

115,803,791.00

80,991,302.00

65,952,644.0O

(101,061,108.00)

1.184.353,973.15

79,538,448.00

t,263.892,42L.7s

-ee5
:ees

rinl Fee

3es

essing Fee

/Clinical Placements

30,870,800.00

1,644,000.00

94L,750.00
22,1,1,8,750.00

14,563,000.00

77,828,700.00

1,963,600.00

4,359,26s.00
14,262,000.00

5,162,000.00

1-,864,500.00

5,822,800.00

9,506,500.00

3,718,500.00

19,s13,000.00

LL,721,990.00

3,769,500.00

9,460,760.00

1.019J77.365.00

5

///

,W
9s4,251.895.00



3. a IGU lncome

Catering Unit
Production Unit

Farm Unit

Bookshop

Total IGU lncome

3. b Other income
Library
Eitates
MMUST FM

Accommodation lncome
Sale of Tender documents

Sundry income
Total other income

4. Bulk purchases of water and electricity

Electricity anci water

Total bulk purchases

5. Employee costs

Employee related costs - salaries and wages

Employee related costs - contributions to
pensions

Housing benefits and allowances
Commuter & Car Allowances
Other allowances
Medical aids

Part time payments
Salory Arreer:

Employee costs

6, Rcmuneration of council

Sltbsistence Allowance

Sitting Allowance
Transport
Honoraria
Meals and Refreshments

Total Council refiruneration

7, Depreciation and amortization expense

Property, plant and equipment

2015

Shs

6,500,409.00
3,821,250.00

2,O58,977,40

12,380,535.00

s0s,s00.00
13,125,000,00

8,050.00

2,222,407.OO

15.850.957.00

2015

Shs

15,168.049.00

15.168.O49.00

201.5

Shs

659,818,966.00

138,976,513.00

366,708,032.00
101,073,315.00

97,7Q4,697.00

37,060,276.00

13,588,571.00
Nii!

1,418.930.364,00

2014
Shs

3,346.605.00

3,324,240.O0

251517.O0

6,922,362.O0

560,000.00

680,000.00

21,000.00

12,500,0c0.00

30,000.00

2,5C0.050.00

15,391,050.00

20L4
Shs

23,957,065.99

23.9s7.065.99

20L4
Shs

622,863,648.00

120,389,176,00

350,994,798.00
110,494,493.00

80,189,972.O0

45,078,r78.O0

44,631,601.00
108,88_8_6s_!.00

1,475,s30,517,O0

2015

Shs

4,499,415 00

4,527,517.O0
? ?qn nnn nn

5,057,436 00

920.437.00

17,25_4.865.00

20L5
Shs

59,062,388.00

20L4

Shs

1-3?3,900.00

12,338,432.O0
q?7 q1n nn

2,500,000.o0

Nil

r,7.190.241.00

20L4
Shs

46,425,004.00

\
+tii'

fll,Lt,
1,.
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Total de

Computers
Plant and

Buildings

Playgroun

Water and

Catering an

Motor
Total repa

9. Contr

Secu rity
Rent

I nsu rance

Legal

Cleaning e

Total co

10. Gene

The foll

Bank Cha

Computer
Extern a I

Hire cha

I ndustrial
Thesis Su

lnter un

Muso Exp

Office Ex

Official En

Public Cel

Publishing

Pu rchase

34 llrr:i

ation and amortization

8. Repairs nd maintenance

ipment

raBe

Hostels

and maintenance

servtces

enses

servtces

expenses

are included in general expenses:

Advertising
Affiliation F

Audit fees

ers

Examinatio
Graduation

Materia ls

( Transport ,plant and MachinerY)

ch ment
ton

ity games

Library Exp

Mmust ISO

New Progra mes

ain ment

Postal and

PSSP paym ts

ions and f uels

d Printing
Purchase of
Purchase of
Purchase of
Purchase of

Uniforms
uters & software

59.052.388.00 46.42s,004.00

ses

ams

Fu rn itu re

Plant and Equipment
Motor Vehicles

Shs

10,056,346.00
4,895,477.00
1,160,000.00
1,816,482.00
3,392,300.00
3,079,838.00
3,994,020.00
9,506,500.00

480,000.00
2,732,552.00
3,450,000.00
3,334,041.00
6,981,758.00
2,033,483.00
5,242,OOO.00

3,728,307.O0

1,658,050.00
56,995.00

497,907.00
192,392,072.0O

1,298,650.00
3,627,843.OO

l-,443,095.00
27,279,741.00

2,244,255.00
3,510,000.00

11,170,536.00

2015
Shs

1,084,000.00
2,604,432.00
9,219,684.OO

700,000.00
1,s20,000.00
1,144,000.00

8.500,978.00

24,773,O94.0O

2015
Shs

18,783,360.00
68,915,550.00

8,519,413.00
5,365,401.00
3,277.867.O0

104.857.591.00

201s

2014
Shs

L,196,760.0O

4,203,320.OO

2,890,585.00
885,ss0.00

1,698,000.00
833,962.80

L4,176,598.L8

25.884,775.94

2014
Shs

20,564,324.O0

52,654,909.00
L5,091,065.45

6.618,111.05

95.928.409.50

2014

Shs

77,145,735.45
10,110,309.80

1,060,025.50
2,1,O9,391.75

1,719,804.00
3,957,293.00
2,650,000.00
7,200,000.00

25,500.00
74,773,611.OO

7,547,920.OO

10,195,030.58
2,386,724.0O

2,482,300.0O

1,180,116.00
3,238,236.10

3s9,900.00
830,778.00

200,7 45,450,00

3s0,s00.00
s,400,258,00
1,645,650.00
9,398,904.00
2,406,340.00
5,550,366.00
8,850,862.00

ikv

ru)



Research Prcgrammes
Robotic

School Practice

Seminars & Conferences

Senate

Shows

Sports Equiprllent
Station e ry

Student Expenses

Students' registration Expenses

Sundry Expenses

Tamasha Festival

Travel & Accommodation
Teaching ly'laterials

Telephone Expenses

Tender
Training Expenses

Transport

Total general expenses

11. Cash and cash equivalents

.4 - n--l- ^*f, ^--L 
6^l^.ii.a uanK ano Lasn iiatance

Total

11.b Details of bank accounts and balances

? ?6q qRq no

2,320,000.00
5,200,000.00
5,831,853.00
1,,282,424.00

4,704,240.00
611,780.00

L6,360,149.00
1"6,431,529.O0

2,932,07 4.OO

2,747,999.CO

72,667,543.00
5,647,s87.00

1,2,642,460.00

691,6s0.00
4,429,2s3.00

15,352.590.00

424.244.604.OO

2015

Shs

11 0AA a2a OC

;rs^^ 13,,16

2,955,158.45

72,73s.00
5,700,560.00
5,087,773.97

762,600.00
5,696,551.60

273,800.00
15,377,580.00

14,884,242,00

2,658,000.00
650,000.00

3,657,049.00
L4,672,26s.9s
8,280,084.00

13,632,744.00
1(2 EEn nn
LJJ ,J JV.WW

1,,842,514.0O

14.405.690.0C

428.L82.703.25

2014
Shs

laA 110 en2 20
LL1', , J,wvJ,Jl

L24,779,603.39

ACCOUNT NO.

100307055-4000

67020987 1 -2400

r l0l8t 133 I

IU IVlUSl.KIANTOSI CAM PUS

BBK -WECO Fees A/C

Famil Bank

Total

US Dollar was exchanged at 106 KES to 1 US S

IIti4385291

0091001438

\
, lt''

fi$rI

!

s/No BANK NAME Amt- Kshs Amt -USD

1 KCB -MAIN ACC 1101811269 1 R71 AqR 67

2 KCB.PSSP ACC 1.,474,460.62

3

1101922109

770t922370 59,s72.40

126,148.L24

7q? q?1 ?n

3.550.491.406

KCB-SEMINARS ACC.

KCB-CAPITAL DEV

STD -RESEARCH ACC,

STD-FEES ACC.

7 EQUIry ACC. 1,401,449.45

9 2,233,112.30BBK-FEES ACC.

BBK-IGL] ACC

1101923210

112903399-9900

102002-57-6500

102987]-2400

50029453-6103

98085259

98080317 q qRn 446 qo

4,219,932.45IU CO.OP-FFFS ACC

1 g,fin 11.. 7*,

L2

1.3 KCB Pavment Account

^tpr 
EEEc Aaa

STD-RESAERCH IN U5 $ ACC 1.22,384.97

!4

L6

?

b/

t!t

07c.00

964.95

903.5

1{{
"I

7800001-2 65s

E o? 931.14 L22,384,,97



13

Cu rrent

Students

Total cu

Total in

Total

GOk Ca

Total

To\al

Total

1,4-

bles

Receivables exchange transactions

12, Current bles

rs

5taff debto
Prepayme and Accrued lncome

bad debts
nbanked Cash

receivables

s at the lower of cost and net realizable value

les from exchange contracts

from non-exchange contracts

2015

Shs

198,000,000.00
5,483,616.00
1,574,000.00

88,500.00
3,725,000.00

(19,800,000.00)
(3,725.000.00)

185.345.116.00

20L4

5hs

207,174,962.00
\o,035,204.25

1,574,000.00
238,500.00

3,726,000.00
(2O,717,496.2O1

(3,726.000.00)

198,10s.170.9s

Sundry Debt

Unbanked c

Provision fo
Provision fo

Tax Arrears
Construction

PSSP Arrears

Prepaid Fees

Audit Fees

Total trade a

2015

Shs

73,069,429.OO

13.059,429.00
198.415.545.00

2074
Shs

2t,278,792.O0

2L,2!8.792.O0
2t9.523.962.Os

n

2015

Shs

110,835,938.00
148.500,000.00

259.335.938.00

457.751.483.00
529.596.217.00

20L4

Shs

2a9.s23.962.05
344,303.555.rt4

GOK Capital velopment Grant

bles from non-exchange contracts

b les

Total Assets

15. Trade & payables from exchange transactions

Sundry Credit 5

ills

283,415,489.00

20L5

Shs

257,460,877.00
18,870,515.00

135,000,000.00

9,813,040.00

1,200.000.00
705,759.92L.00

2015

53,939,765.00
8.685.889.00

75.667,654.00

20L4
Shs

400,899,5s5.00
92,697,454,O0

48,124,319.00

29,813,040.00

1,000,000.00
831.85s.933.00

20L4

Shs

13,642,000.00

47,076,698.70
7.ss2,w35

68,27!.646.O5

16 Refundab deposits from customers

Caution mon

Retention Mo

Donor Funds

other payables

Shs

36 lPii1:':

ey

13,042,000.00

tu



17. Employee benefit liability

CBA salary arrears

June 2014 payroll

Total employee benefit liability

Total liability

18. Cash generated from operations

Surplus for the year before tax
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease in inventory
lncrease in receivables
lncrease in payables

Net cash flows from operating activities

r o a^^i+^l e,^F+
^J. !oPrtor urqrrr

Received for the period

(59,062,388.00) 46,425,003.68

2015

Shs

Nil

67,363,279.00

67.36t.279.00

848.790.854.00

2015
Shs

2O2,93L,828.00

8,r-49,363.00
(238,227 ,sz} .95)

61.465.521.0s
/,24.743.L96.901

2015

Shs

97.200.00

20'1,4

Shs

10,128,796.00

Nil

10.128.796.00

910,256.37s.05

20L4

Shs
(91.374,281.93)

7 6RR 716 ?5

179,862,s78.OO
(44,084,13s.0s)

98.517.881.04

2014

5hs

79.538.MA

,..\

,.d!l ,,i -.'i(rl ,

1il'u



(\\iY'\i.\

G)_
(D
G,t

o)-t

o
o

-o
o

-o6
o

o
o

N

6

o
d

€

a
o
Eo,5
uU

od

o
e

e
oLd

oE

oE

;
'2.

lo
o(\l
q)

-?
o(,

6

6ioo
oo'
d

I.E
0)o

@
ra

H
rn

o
!
@

n

o
f,
f,
E
fu

m

0
l

E
(J

o
o
F

o

o

Ea

lo
F
k
H

i-

t
t--
ra)
Nq
ro
6t
(o,
c{

u)
t_
(t,
roo
..t(,
(Y)

o)
@
cf)
o(o
o)

so
@
o,
N
c.i
@
cr)

\o
N.f
t-
@
o',
$

6
e.l
c{
i-(0o
e.i(,
t

@
@
cV)-

C!

O
o)
tr)

o,
FT

'trr)
f.--
N
o)
(o-

ll-)

s-
(o
f.-
o-
(r)
cO-

(c)
@
cr-
(o
(o-
o
@
O)-

l{,
c{

(o
o)
rc-
rf(,
c.i

'i6

oF
aE
U)

o,
N
f
@
(o
N

N

o
CY)q
c.l
@
rr)
@
@

ct)(q

aI,
ct)

t
N
Gi

(,
(.o-

r,6
(o-
(\t

.t-
6t

(o
(oo
r.
CO
tr)
c.i(o

(o
@o
o
o)
o,

oo
00
c,ilo.f.
o)

+(o
$.

N

ID
N
o)-
loo
t:
o)
@

N
c.,
ro
@o
o-

$

c.)
N(o
$
@
f..--

lr)o
N
c")
O)
f-'.
o)
$

(o

o.f
.

r+\to-
6tlo
-(lr-
(D
(o

N
F.
O)
o,
cf)
tr)
o

tr)o
f.-.
o'i$
cci

o
L
0.1

o
E
oo

o
E.
a

so
rO
@
$
tr)-

Lr)

(oo
n
$
O)q
(o

o
(n
.itc!
@
ro

\t3,)

D

.cf

\l(o
il(o

.f
rO\t-(o
(o
(o

t
ro-
C"st(')
il
rO

@

c!
rf)s
C.,
os

@
O)

t-
N
f.-
F-(a

N
o)(o
o
f.-
N

^i

(e)
g)

'i$co
r{
$t

o.ca

rt
tr)
co
(',(t
ry
rot-

tr)
@
N
(o
@
N
ro

(D
(e)

@
6t
ro
o
6

F
doo

t
c)
F.
d
i,-

r.i
co

(o
(o
(o-

$
o)
co
s
(f)

LOo
c)
so
o)
l.r

$
O)_

@
o)
F-
N
$

s
N
ro
co

o)
t-

f.-
$
@
6i(o
@
N

@(\
F--_

|--
N
Ll-)

f--
@\
(o
(o
o
rf)

0,
L

=tr
L

tr

@
lr){
i,-t,
r{,
6t

@

\t
+o(o
@
cO

rot-
@-

t-
o)_
oo
F.

g)
t-
$-
6l
c)
o)
c.i
@

r.t
o
Ori
c\l
rD
.f
@

rf)
ro
rys
$oi
N

ooq

tr)
(r)

$(oo
o,
@
Or-

t-N

o
cr)
(o-
ro
o,
tr)
o
F.-

c.J
$

cO
f.-
co_

N

co
CO
O)
c",

o)
t-

1..
o
N.
f.*(o
(.)
ov

@

ro
o,
tr)
co
f.-

.{-

co
O)

$-

O)o
@,
@
lr)
$
oi

N
O
t-
@
t---_

lr)

f..-
F-
co
co(o
o,
F-
@

O)
cf)
n
O
F-
l'.-.
o

@
l'-
o-
c!
N
|.-
(o

o(o
.f-
F.()
l()-
c{(o

rI)ln
\t_
o
O)(o
-f
c')

ori'
(o
u)o
N
-f
$

o
CO
@
(c;
CO
@
co

rno
@
oi
co
t.-
t...

o
No
tri
rr)
N
c.i(o

@
rf)q
co

t-

(o
(,
o(")
I
6l

og
.9
0)

a
E

o

E9
trcL
6;
lLo

IJJ

aEa

a
-c
c/)

so
|.'.'
$
O)

N
t-

o(os
^i(o
$
O)
@

N
o)
(o
1...
F-
(o

co

O)
(o
(o
@
(o

c1r-(e
oi(n
(\I
(9
ct)

c(
o
C
U
o
o

III

lr)
(v)
c.l
c;
\o

do

(o
co
tr)
o
f.*

to
ci
C"o
d
co

F.
t,-
c;
C!
(9-
(o

(')
N.

(o
a
@(\
o^

(os
c.L
O)
@'.
o)

cos
C;
f.-
n
CO(o

-

rl,(o
co-
(n
6)
o-
00
ct
o)

N(oo
tI.,o
$-
o
lr)

cot
d
T\\t-
(t
(o
(Y)-

.f
(o

co
$
.f
N

f.-
r.-lt-
@

t-_
@
@
$

U)(9
co
ot
ol
@-
co(n
CD

-o.!o
-xPbP
ET

o
-c(/)

o)
t-,
(fJ
$.
co
N

-

ro
ros
f.-
LO
t*-
c!(o

o
Co
C
C
c\
o
|..

CO
$_
F--
@

co

rO

co.
co
CO

co
@

o
oq

(oq
N
N

G'

c;(>
o:
(l,
o

C'J

c.)
tr)

c.)
o
tr)
ro

cr)

o
(o

N
co
(.)
ro

cr,

(o
c.,
cr).i'
,(.,
F-
Lr)

o,
(,
o(n
!:

\to.

ao
\l
ry
o,
@

-
o)r1

(o(t
@
@(o
ct)
Edo
G)

N(o
O
(^)o
$,
o
ro

co
ra)
or

F-(r-
(t)
r{)
6

f.-t-
s.
O
t..
co
@
$

lr)
co
.C-

o
o)o
6
<t
11

Lr)q
f.-ul
o
ro

o
c.)
cfj

o)
F-

6i

CO
@
@
o
rf)
F-.
o
F--

EOCE'(u.E
E'E
O=Jlo

o
-ca

o
(o
(o
O)
d
(o

$
o
N
q)
C
J-

Co
(E'o
0)

o
a)o

oq,

E
.Y
o
ott
0)z

o

N
oN
c)c
f

o
CO

c.)

o
N
0)
C
=-o
co

$
o
N
o)
C
f-O

(O

lo
oc!
o

-)
o
CO

t
o(\
6)

-)
c)
(f,

oc
.o
.=
!
!

o
o)

=fco
o
o-

=Eo
6)
a
C(!
F

l.()

o
(\.t

o

-)
o(o

o
(E
'6
o)
L

0)o

tri

N
o
N:
f
a

c
.9
(s'o
0)

o
6)o

(o

oN
0)c
f,-

co

Eo'E
(o'o
OJ

o
o
U

c
o
E
.s
o

t.I.l

tg

too
o
L
L
+,

T
TL

ci
N

ooo

N

N:
f,

a
C
o
.o
!

o
c{
0)c
f-o

aE

=Eo

a
o)

.C
!
'3
co

0-

=Eo
OJ

a
C
($

F



N
(t
z.

\a)

N

'o()

o

(\
(!

tr)

6l

z

(.)

oa()
&

o
()p

Ct!)
-.C qJ

>-c
9oxo
H H 6.0
!5 'o tr- ^,(E-x!
c, l" o o-:r.EF=;F 3 X.9

(-)

YoZt)od.

-q)
Y6Y:A
o" 6)

-E!P'-ts.i e E.9
9>6e

;ftHF"o tr Gt';o ^2 -di

EUVU

E()
(c

E

(.)

!0J
or)
?ii.. ()

9o,
cOe

e3
'6
Ov,

E()0)&
TIP
>o
-0)tre.o-x
oi()
9;
(do
P-5
,nl
c)'=

FI
o-.

6J,!-
l=()
hotr

Er
:o

.= 0)
U:
=(d€
(c>
bB
x=q,, 9i
6.)'"

:B
-o;
taa
Q) U)

.'j .!
cd(/)
LOJ

3a
aU)a

.d:,

(a'C
>. !oL>

E-F
= (.)

ar Oe0
L.2s

ho -.
>oath
]L

=9.(J *

O->Q
i-o
f-, ,*

az
F

z
14
13ar=a
U
t.1

&

-
F4
lri

A
)
B
F]
Fl

v-o
(n
6r-l
&

01

P4

tr
(d
bo o.)

AO

Ed

:ir.3
= ot!*fi$b

dp
d

AC)

7-9
!21! X
! ooE
fi$b

()

q
@

F

tr
oo

.(,
oJX

-:: @
FIB

trii
i'€
ro

a6L>0)->.=
!d)

()d_c-

U9o ^.oE o be
>-C 6J U19-'-
L ! a)q-b': i.i r
E'o U i 5
6.(2 E'; tr
ll),aoO=.d cd-C
!2 U C= o-i r pf T Ea 9= ]E5 0)oP= > ^'EtjHr*-*il)--< o bE,:o >,sr.q bDoa(6=Oc^,
,HEE3EHFIJ tr > o 0)

9oo
P.7 a
o2E
goU.--
!0-EE5F g
Et-;Fo,< 6) a6LP>-o
o@11 =s(sY/o: Ht"E
- () o'-g€ b u
9c36
(vhF

a,9\c
Fhit6F u oJ-o

q
O
o\

@

O

C.l

;
&
(ff

a
t!
tr-

cio

(d!i
E.s
=0)
i- oO

=n);/,
>ro
'i,4
!)-oa0)

:- [L

0)'q,
-E 'L)l-- cd.tE
f\ :-a

.+q
a}\
ra

(r-

s'

OCJ

ilits'a ik€ a'; i
oO O Y r,i

E! 6 g, eq
E;E e 'oo:
r d @-- c::.'<uo'o E r-: c4,= tr

dSF;#UH
a9.oi4ornC
at ^_ - ir P - ,rr-.9-----!9* Z il #.'i 6Z- -(d'" ='--rnEPE5'r5rr;< () n) Ft.) Cexf E FriEtr p o ? F.n t
-'?7 ? E r'm q?

..-i9 9._-r '^9
t'.1;4G\C-:-=

.+(\
a

an-o-

idxc;
.c=
:4.
d)x
-dtr
.c,'!,-. 0)

-nEl- 0)

m6)

qA
bO tL.5.

3.= d
E8=O O(;o.tr ".6dY,J?-c/
(,o(E

=ud(dE=
i.loo->
G) Ltbo_b d

T'H -A,nU'-'u*
nt 

- 
o,n: tr 

'FX6-)o)
6t* 0J,>.Q>C)
-h,!

q()
o
d

:+

()!
> Eo(,o r: ir.

H.Uc)* o-o

.=-o d
|:cdo)
> e',

9 or, 1
F.= ()

'cn!o

I
a,)

E
oo

o
Eo
hI)
d
6J

k

Ea

Eo-L
0(
o
(6

()
-oo
0)

a
6

N

!

L

Q
OOzR

-!:ri {

.E
E.r
>,z.Eki2 Y? ov
G:E(,
LLJ9
r!lEtr
q) O:i !iz.e H

Y

-LQ--0_6i:
-Uub

'o
d
E
E()
-Til-,", 7(I,) i)

-.-,i-.

o

z

(\
(n

2
t

-o
()

z
(.)

&

od

Oe

=E<tr
go
ooxo
21

(0
tr
od

^()vc
2E_
c*o
5 bo!E
!</=@ iu

0)

Eao
d

(s
-vOe3S
4C
go
ooxoi=dZi

0)

oa()

9x+vL

!* I9Y! N-.
- - u 6)
-!o

LUUJO
d Ef, @

BEgE
a.4().=q, ts'E FI E Jt--o.r>H-.
.E E E €t
P-O?@99o0ts'Eli F.= L

-U-U{r358

o, EBg
*0)dXP
*.\r1-9

H U E dEf fi !, gE
eg,I j u,P,^-'d 

^ 
a

-.I*L-v.I rtr- o A';

HSE S9:
id O a O a,O

E; E'F 3';>h!:!.!J
0);:;:€
H;o3 5 > d



'\-.
\\\

\
o.l

d

v^)

o
c.l

d

c)
C\

rr)

<)
c.l

cn

z

-o
o:
()

O
C\

d
z

()

oq
()

N
)r

z
oa
p

(.)

-a
o
()
aq

((

EbD()
^O;4
/<HLgiE 3
5 oolIfi15

a()

?Y;6'-o- 0)

'-!-t]!

= 
9 E.;

A-6
-o()cEfiEooo;dA
o ^-7 A

fevU

(\
O
-n)
(J ,-iqg
ofi

^O

0,)

E_r
r)

.=
F

-o
o

YA.. r' ()

a@:5qX692

C.l

(3

z
c

tr)

(\
>'
cd

z
a
(

C)
N

63

5

'oo
o
()
&

o
o
o
&

q)

o0()

o
o
o
&

C)

oq
o
&

*6
.o{
!-G

,F6r

>EE
(dojy.-oo
E: 

'Z- r- cd

Ed
b.0 c)^(),akC*
9ir 3
5 Oll !+ifi15

J<
Op>E
<5
EOOoxo
z1

-o
C)

oao

JZ
OP

LE<5
coooXO
7-1

0)

a
6)

cd

Op

tE<E
coooxo
21

.d
-vo!}E
4d
coooXO27

o

'-=!!l
i.F-
A4*F

doj:o
'- O O.-
6lY@o
<<< a ()
Z.r-Gt@

d
-V
OeEtr
<(t
coooxo
Z;

Oetc
4C
EE
xo
z-l

'o
()

a
0)

()

=o'oa
-o
q

d

0)

€
0J 'o
-c 0)oEl
,i
FA

= r.- a.:o-ct
-@frL^() CI (L) JY€ R!E.=
B3H: U-o 6 0.!l EEEsE:
O.=Po-o)
E tgrg
8E =t 6vL.i-&

$ir,Hr' 
= 

6.:-o.9 EE6 E
-Q-16)JF.=i;-oc

0)

o'()
q

-o
a

d

0)

o-o
-c ()o'o
ri
FE

X

0)

=o
0)

.o
q

Cd

0)

a-o
0)-(]
-c 0)()-o
,i
Fo

()

=
O

-o

od

0)

0)-o-co(,)E
oi
FO

o

0)

o
(o

0)

-Ur
o .rJ-(()o-o
orl

A6J

6$)
0)qV

o.r E
()(g
3 o.>

or€
-oP
O -C,
-c()o!
ori

I
-od
=(d
d
o.r B'o()
tr()
S.o
eb
u-oU{

-..! cd

o()
or€
FJJ

(.)
.c

h-o.ro
o'I()oJq>
cX
6
C?
^O,=-m

3=H
90!

0A d
Fo- 5Fp. ()

d
> 0,)

-'OGO
(U.i

cio)qd o-'I
0) >\9)
fP

6 o)qY
-.C=
o()ts
95-o
Fod

0)

E

oo

0)

()
bo
6J
Cd

C)a
cd

do
-xEEBru C)=-o-> o(-)qF
TEC=
E-3 U

e9b
iD tr ';i()o;i
.oor

qI
O:6
aAh=o>
L^EA
>.-
cd^AY
o*
5 to^
.- oO.;€
3@^o.otro
o

(-) @

rov

Fg
oo'.c c
oii
'..o()()
!l].']

EA
Ee

l(fc*:l0) ^ I
la - (Dlc>,trlo.: i
KJ lLr
lnil8l(\.l o o
I

q-
o

,(d
t*
Pg
%v.),
()ca
IO
6oo
CJ(r)
dq

tjv

()
b,

ca

8EB:
r-U

aa
-cdv5
(HO
o)
6)..trE5tr
Oa

>-<>Lr-oo
,5=
-.: ,ri'
UDF

E
o

o)a

9 b!:
o=61

-xi:rn(]e

0)

'oo
o

q)

rn

\o(.)

(d
o.
L
0)

a
bo

o

0)

a
()
o
a

rf,

=

(H

o
()
o.

!
.o

b0

JZ
L

()

'o()

a

tf)
.+

k-

O
,o
@
bo

-v
o

.D

-o
0)

o
CN

al
.tr

o

a
_o

b0

-v
o
B
0)-
0)

(.)a
.c

o
c.i\o

F-

t--
C\

v
(ts
o

o
6)-o

N

v
o

o
-o
0)'o

r:
$
(\
N

aa

v

<?

C.
o\
oo

t-r
+
@

a
V
6)o
cd

o
d

o

-g to
9Co
ddE
>E Og;E
osc!

$(re

o!Otr
rj ,E
Xx

^Y.a{ L
9?N o

-6Uv -Et"o<d
Ox -
sv3
oHd
Io iUo d
- \O (g

:^a
o) tt- <i

=€m#:O
Fl --a !
ro-cE

od)
6AV}

q-0)a
vPa

oJ:>.
Lv*
l-CCd

,9lE .o E

rB6tsO-
.: oo cd-q*oE
U-
5 oro 

o-r

'nOcn-cXo-t-
1,.-6*sr-d
uo\oca*
tL u?. o. ;
-.-*d
-NN-F..r;E
-ia.i 5
If)c!)4 o

tro
do

(E
r
0)

!
,9
"o
0)

o

o
oL
6)

0)

()l- >)
L!

(JE
c.; J

-o

tr
o

.L

o
d
Lo
.oo
()

a

.3
o(d
Zn 6(D-oEc0)o:t
pa)K
or 9 o.r

o.iJ

a'.

"i L-,.
7

tt



,;iEF-

t" 7
a

a

N
>.

z

O
c\l

CS

z
V]

(J
-c 0)>-c

9o.l'iioLE6-O
I-o 9oqJ 9o-Ioo
E==2
i: g 9..4

u
:6..; g

2 od.
i;6)X652
-o
E*6'-
E€ = *'= ol tr.YU>daJaz o.r F
EUEP
E eZE

0)
qF
cO
6J€

o>'oo
L

LUo-o-? io.: 6
a9?^

x3€
O@^; e':-c()xFld

0)

cO
Ca,!o
u.=o>-t, o
Eo-
o..? lp= d)agt
x_3€
Aq.\* o-r .E6) !.i-.c()xFB6

L
0-)€oP
-6*gls
- 

t!1 -o'd= 0)

E E=EF->
^=Y6)6 .r = .=o-X r>
*; >-!)
='oELrgq€
89ts9
-. 6,a

L4-4

F(d@d

o

o
o

dE
.) A\

LH:
A!.= '/'-HTx N.t6o93
!l=d(.)&H-A

>.8 o oi)'() - *
-.J tr bli
-u .E.g.E
H'rc H !
-dL,ts:iiDo)o'--(, Q.!T'-@q-9Eb

:HOo>FCOO

()

q

o

d€

OF
@=
6.) /ar

E
>, o-

*E()
-A'- -CBea
O 5-...+=
(tJ -ttr 6J

oc);
o 0.6
,nxc,
d1)=

=B_ess Ei- O- o)

cd o\
EEqo c(-'l
*.s6E
ca O.6q 9

i'Ir 3.,
7 = iE E
u:; r', cru).d.J ' -ei E u :gF:.8;
*r..5 rp
-o\'E C jg
ts a.s 5'F
:.3.] Q : 6'.i\o - d) -a-*ln=t*r) () Y Q;*EEE
oiV UZ i

.J

L

'o
^0JL-:<oo

ts(d
3>.
rO
\/d
n>r- L'..c)
ooEo;3
;E
Y. (d

!o

o
Fl o.)

60J

o-
rcilc) (D-

= 
() 6l-d hotr Etr'r, o=

-, cd O- ..)('! a ;.-.
latVU
+Eii!rAdXN'I Q - oOO(J0L
h=!u.j.: 3 6
Otr(,DO:

E il5 tr 6)q-YOC
\/ H L F 

-Ji'= 0) tr =
- 

E a>..J
ft=uO.'lf

cd

o
L
o.
o.
d

o

ai
n) -

uo\
0J -^o.+x c.l
dJ \o
p -i'G
ad =voo

FVE

(F

0,)
L9

-t, Ca
Etr)
0i r')g-i
0 a--t

4)N

)q
.\laF-v

_o
otg$

a2

O\U

(.)

L
()

o
rdL
O

O

o
(-)

0)

E
oo
tr
C)

C)
bo
G
(d

L

a

tr
O
(€

L
{)b

-C)
U
c)

\(.Ni\').\

N
a)

(Jc)
o=>.:

AE

ac/

L
oo-
d

rsF;=z-
rgo-oEco

tsx,ou
a) 'tN.E

t

N
>.
cd

z
=ta)

N
(d

=

N
(!

=ra)

'o
0)

(.)

d,

'o
(,)

a
0)
r',

'oo:
a()
&

o

oq
()
&

-o
0)

o
c)

Cd

cJbo(JAO

Alt
o ?:- a)
CH (J

= 
o0 !+I:<xglrli

cS

E
h0 0.) U

AC,
oii D

5 ooSE:<xElr\J

J<o-tE
<=
ooxo
21

o+
ia

< E

ooxoE<

o

oc
-> c)

€5e


